FINAL REPORT - PHASE III TETRA SOCIETY OF NORTH AMERICA RAIL ASSISTED BATHROOM TRANSFER DEVICE

FINAL REPORT - PHASE III

TETRA SOCIETY OF NORTH AMERICA

RAIL ASSISTED BATHROOM TRANSFER DEVICE

CMHC File #6521 -24/93

PROJECT TITLE: RAIL ASSISTED BATHROOM TRANSFER DEVICE

AUTHOR: THOMAS BALESHTA COMPLETION DATE: FEBRUARY 7, 1995



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

"This project was carried out with the assistance of a grant from Canada Mortgage & Housing Corporation under the terms of the Housing Technology Incentives Program. The views expressed are those of the author and do not represent the official views of the Corporation."



TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	
BACKGROUND STATEMENT	
PROJECT OBJECTIVES	
DESCRIPTION OF SYSTEM6-	
DESCRIPTION OF TESTING	
PERFORMANCE CHARACTERISTICS	
COMMENTS ON TESTING	
CONCLUSIONS	

<u>APPENDIX</u>

House Bathrooms	-A-
Configurations	- B -
Computer generated drawings of Original Prototype & Bathroom Setting	-C-
Photos of the Device in use	D-
Completed Ergonomic Evaluation Forms	-E-
Summary of G.F. Strong and In-House Tests	F

i

1. ABSTRACT

The Rail Assisted Bathroom Transfer Device developed by the Society allows disabled users to move between the shower/bathtub and the toilet in a regular sized bathroom, without having to use their wheelchair.

The device consists of a seat equipped with rollers mounted on rails. The seat rolls back and forth between the toilet and the shower/tub. The design reduces the number of transfers necessary in standard-sized bathrooms. This project was undertaken to test the performance of the device and to make improvements based on the results.

The Rail Assisted Bathroom Transfer Device was tested and evaluated in the G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre and in several homes.

At G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre the device was tested with people of different disabilities, age and sizes.

The results of G.F. Strong testing were analyzed and modifications made to the second prototype used in home tests.

Based on the tests in people's homes we found the device best suited to all bathrooms where the bath or soaker tub could be connected via rail to the toilet seat. In conclusion, the modifications improved the device and made it marketable.

CMHC S SCHL

Helping to house Canadians

Question habitation, comptez sur nous

National Office

Bureau national

700 Montreal Road Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0P7 700 chemin de Montréal Ottawa (Ontario) K1A 0P7

Puisqu'on prévoit une demande restreinte pour ce document de recherche, seul le sommaire a été traduit.

La SCHL fera traduire le document si la demande le justifie.

Pour nous aider à déterminer si la demande justifie que ce rapport soit traduit en français, veuillez remplir la partie ci-dessous et la retourner à l'adresse suivante :

> Le Centre canadien de documentation sur l'habitation La Société canadienne d'hypothèques et de logement 700, chemin de Montréal, bureau C1-200 Ottawa (Ontario) K1A OP7

TITRE DU RAPPORT :

Je préférerais que ce rapport soit disponible en français.

NOM			
ADRESSE			
	rue		app.
	ville	province	code postal
No de te	élephone ()	

1

TEL: (613) 748-2000

Canada"

Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation

Société canadienne d'hypothèques et de logement



RÉSUMÉ

Le dispositif de transfert sur rails pour salle de bains mis au point par la *Tetra Society of North America* permet aux personnes handicapées de se déplacer entre la douche ou la baignoire et la toilette d'une salle de bains de dimensions courantes sans avoir à recourir à leur fauteuil roulant.

Le dispositif se compose d'un siège équipé de roulettes montées sur des rails. Grâce aux roulettes, le siège peut aller et venir entre la toilette et la douche ou la baignoire. Ce dispositif permet de réduire le nombre de transferts nécessaires dans une salle de bains standard. Le présent rapport fait état des essais de performance menés sur le dispositif en vue de l'améliorer.

Le dispositif de transfert sur rails pour salle de bains a été mis à l'essai et évalué aux installations du *G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre* ainsi que dans plusieurs maisons.

Au *G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre,* le dispositif a été essayé par des personnes d'âge et de taille variés ayant des déficiences diverses.

Après analyse des résultats des essais menés au *G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre*, un second prototype a été fabriqué en tenant compte des modifications suggérées et mis à l'essai dans des maisons.

Les essais menés chez les gens ont permis de constater que le dispositif convenait particulièrement bien à toutes les salles de bains où la baignoire pouvait facilement être raccordée au siège de toilette avec des rails. En conclusion, les modifications apportées ont amélioré le dispositif et l'ont rendu commercialisable.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Rail Assisted Bathroom Transfer Device.

The Tetra Society of North America is a non-profit organization that matches skilled volunteers with people with disabilities who need an assistive device developed or adapted that will increase their independence.

The rail transfer device developed by the Society allows disabled users to move between the shower/bathtub and the toilet in a regular-sized bathroom, without having to use a wheelchair. The device consists of a seat with rollers mounted on rails. The seat rolls back and forth between the toilet and the shower/tub. This design reduces the number of transfers needed in the bathroom and can be used in standard-sized bathrooms.

The device makes standard-sized bathrooms accessible to disabled users and does not require structural modifications to the bathroom.

Dwellings would no longer require oversize bathrooms for people with disabilities, virtually eliminating one of the main obstacles of accessible housing design.

This device has enormous potential to revolutionize the lives of people with severe disabilities, as the original prototype has done for its current user. At present, nothing similar exists on the market.

The original prototype was designed and built by Paul Cermak and Sam Sullivan. It has been used by Mr. Sullivan in three different bathrooms. Only small modifications have been made to the device to accommodate it in two different bathroom configurations.

As part of the project, two prototypes were designed and built for testing.

These units were tested by people with different levels of disability and in different bathrooms.

The units were designed to accommodate the various levels of motor ability.

Testing of the Prototypes.

The first prototype was installed in the G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre.

Ian Dennison, Equipment Evaluator, and Diana Mah-Jones, Head of the Occupational Therapy of G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre, agreed to have the device tested in the Occupational Therapy Department at G.F. Strong.

The tests were carried out with the help of Occupational Therapy Staff.

Large groups of people observed the device in practical use and several people tested the device. Occupational Therapy Staff and people using the device made similar recommendations.

Improvements requested:

- a wider seat and improved cushioning
- arm rests for the seat
- a brake for the seat
- improved movement along the track

Based on the testing changes were introduced to the second device as follows:

- The seat was made 18" wide to give users a better seating platform for transfers
- Cushioning was improved
- Arm rests were installed to both sides of the seat
- Brakes were installed to stop the seat at any point on the rail
- Crossbars were installed to make the pulling and pushing easier for the user

Although the official G.F. Strong test yielded a relatively small user group, the comments were valuable. A table with details of the G.F. Strong trials is in Appendix E. The second prototype which was modified according to the results of the tests was used in a house with a large accessible bathroom with a shower and no bathtub.

The device was tested with three users generating feedback. Additional tests were made in a home with a toilet positioned beside the tub and taps behind the seat and a home with the toilet beside the tub and taps in front of the seat.

The prototype was used in homes by able-bodied people as well, with minimum inconvenience. No other changes were necessary.

After introduction of the changes requested, the only changes required are those necessitated by conditions associated with manufacturing and shipping.

3. BACKGROUND STATEMENT

There is a need for a rail transfer system. The device makes standard sized bathrooms accessible to people with severe disabilities and does not require structural modifications to the bathroom. Disabled users generally prefer standard size bathrooms because there are more available handholds and fewer places to fall. The device also has the potential to solve an important problem encountered by architects and building designers. People with severe disabilities would have a greater choice of dwellings because the rail transfer device will enable them to live in units with standard small bathrooms.

4. **PROJECT OBJECTIVES**

- To design and build two prototypes of the Rail Assisted Bathroom Transfer Device.
- To test these prototypes in a variety of settings including both institutional environments and private homes.
- To test these prototypes on a target group with as wide a range of disability and motor skills as possible.
- To produce a final design for a product which is easily assembled and readily adaptable to a number of different types of bathroom environments.

5. DESCRIPTION OF SYSTEM - Rail Assisted Bathroom Transfer Device

Drawing Bathroom Scenario #I.

The Rail Assisted Bathroom Transfer Device enables disabled users to move themselves between the shower/bathtub and the toilet in a regular size bathroom without having to use a wheelchair.

Device consists of a seat (3) with rollers (5) that is mounted on rails (6). The seat can roll back and forth between the toilet and the shower and/or bathtub.

The seat (3) is 18" wide with cushioning on seat, back rest (7), arm rest (1) and hand or arm supports (8) and brake (2).

Arm rests (1) are installed to both sides of the seat. They can be flipped out of the way for transfers and/or completely removed each separately for persons who do not require them or who need support on one side only.

The brake (2) allows the seat to be secured in any position along the rails (6). This allows the user to transfer from any position and keeps the seat (3) steady at any point on the track. The seat is used both as a shower chair and a toilet chair.

Pull bars (4) are attached along the track. The bars assist with movement and can act as grab bars if the user loses balance.

Position and length of non-slip feet (11) on the rail are adjustable - and are equipped with the rubber suction cups (12).

Additional drawings in Appendix B.

There is a description of bathroom configurations suitable for the use of the device. The basic configurations are all bath or shower rooms where the bath or shower tub and/or shower area could be connected via rail (6) with the toilet seat.

The prototype used in homes included a spacer (9) which changes the position of the regular toilet seat (10) by 3" and makes it usable by able- bodied people as well. It is not necessary to use the seat (3) for disabled people. (See drawing of bathroom scenario and additional bathroom configurations suitable for the use of the device in Appendix A attached).

DESCRIPTION OF TESTING

PHASE ONE - Testing in G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre

Equipment Evaluator Ian Dennison and, Head of Occupational Therapy Diane Mah-Jones at G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre, agreed to test the device in the Occupational Therapy Department at G.F. Strong. The testing was carried out with the help of Occupational Therapy Department Staff and Occupational Therapy students.

Tom Baleshta from TETRA was present at all testing.

The purpose of the tests at G.F. Strong was to test the device with people of different disabilities, age groups, and different sizes. The ergonomic evaluations form, included in Appendix D, was used to collect the observations and experience of users. The tests were done with the first prototype in G.F. Strong. The configuration of the bathroom is designed for use of a shower chair.

The bathtub at G.F. Strong and the set-up as shown in Scenario #1 in Appendix A was used for testing. The device consisted of the rail, two sets of the support feet, a seat 16" wide, and a pin brake for the transfer position of the user. The device was observed by a large group of people working at G.F. Strong and used by several people as follows:

- 1. A paraplegic male, with one person assisting.
- 2. A male recovering from a stroke, with right hemiphlegia, one person assisting.
- 3. A male with multiple sclerosis, without assistance.
- 4. A male recovering from a stroke, with left side paralysis, without assistance.
- 5. A quadriplegic male, with one person assisting.
- 6. A female with multiple sclerosis, one person assisting.

Observations and Suggestions were as follows:

- Improve the seat by making it 18" wide, having deeper cushioning, and an adjustable backrest.
- Equip the seat with a brake allowing the seat to be stopped in any position along the rails.
- Install arm rests on the seat.
- Install a foot rest.
- Improve movement along the track by using crossbars.
- Install a waist belt.

Although the G.F. Strong trials yielded a relatively small user group, the observations were in general, consistent. Diana Mah-Jones, Head of Occupational Therapy of G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre, was disappointed that more people were not involved in the trials. However, she was pleased at the outcome.

The changes requested based on the testing in G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre were applied to the second prototype as follows:

- The rail from the first prototype was used with minimum changes.
- Additional cross bars were installed to the rail to make the pulling and or/pushing easy.
- The seat was changed to a seat 18" wide (first prototype seat was 16" wide), to give a better platform for transfers.
- Cushioning of the seat was improved by increasing the foam thickness on the seat and the back rest.
- Arm rests were installed on both sides of the seat.
- The arm rests can be removed or flipped out of the way for transfers by people who do not require them and/or who need one side support only.
- A new brake was installed to stop the seat at any point on the rail.
- To make cleaning simple all material used is stainless steel, aluminum, plastic and hardwood.

PHASE TWO - Testing in the Home Environment

Anne Parsons, a physiotherapist from the Vancouver West Main Health Unit, Barb Parsons from the Central Office of the Vancouver Health Department, and Moira Jaques, Occupational Therapist from the Vancouver Resources Society all expressed interest in the device and had candidates and locations for further evaluation in homes ready.

The second prototype was tested in three homes and with three different configurations of bathrooms.

One house has a large size accessible bathroom with a shower and no bathtub. The device was tested by three users and generating feedback.

The second house had the toilet positioned beside the bathtub, with the taps behind the seat and one user.

The third house had the toilet beside the bathtub with the taps in front of the seat, and one user.

The prototype used in homes is equipped with a spacer which makes it usable by able bodied people as well, with minimum inconvenience. No other additional changes were necessary. Data from house testing are in Appendix E. Considering feedback from Phase Two testing, including Sam Sullivan's 2-year long use of the original device in three different bathroom configurations, no additional changes were required.

In each bathroom where the device was tested it was clear some additional grab bars should be added for the users convenience.

Drawings:	Bathroom Scenario #1 and #2.)	
	Brake mechanism)	APPENDIX A
		Ì	

7. PERFORMANCE CHARACTERISTICS

The Rail Assisted Bathroom Transfer Device is difficult to compare with other supporting devices in bathrooms. This is a completely different aid for disabled people to be used in bathrooms where several transfers are necessary.

This system will not solve bathroom problems for all disabled people in all bathrooms. But installation is fast(approx. one half hour), and easy and it can be left in place with minimum inconvenience for able bodied people.

In general, the device is limited to certain bathrooms depending on simple requirements as to the configuration of the bathroom as shown in the drawings in Appendix A.

The main advantage of this device is that it reduces the assistance required to move from the toilet to the shower or bathtub as well as giving the user a choice of the proper transfer position that is not dictated by the position of the toilet or bathtub/ shower area in the bathroom.

8. COMMENTS ON TESTING

After the completion of testing in the G.F. Strong Rehabilitation Centre, Diana Mah-Jones, head of Occupational Therapy Department at G. F. Strong, expressed her disappointment that more people were not involved in the trials as users. However, overall she was pleased at the outcome. This sort of evaluation was new to the Centre. The positive outcome based on the tests should encourage future trials.

From our point of view we see the testing as very important since it generated useful observations and suggestions.

Testing in the homes was useful to evaluate the usefulness of the device for different configurations of bathrooms.

In general, based on the results, the testing was considered to be successful. For future testing, more time should be allotted for testing in institutional settings as well as in the home.

9. CONCLUSIONS

The advantage of the rail assisted bathroom transfer device is that it reduces the assistance required to move from the toilet to the shower /tub, giving the user greater independence. This is achieved in a very simple manner. The design of the device reduces the number of transfers in the bathroom and can be used in standard-sized bathrooms as shown in Appendix A.

The device makes most standard-sized bathrooms accessible to disabled users and does not require structural modifications to the bathrooms.

The Society feels this device has enormous potential to revolutionize the lives of people with severe disabilities, as the original prototype has done for its first user.

The device does not restrict the bathroom for use by disabled people only. The bathroom is usable by able-bodied people as well, with minimum inconvenience.

Further development should focus on finalizing and refining the design and market planning.

APPENDIX A

HOUSE BATHROOMS







APPENDIX B

CONFIGURATONS









CA-Series

ntercom Only System

The CA-Series is ideal for home or office.

The CA-Series is similar to the EP 4-wire series without the AM/FM radio. All 4-wire remote components are fully compatible to the CA-Series. If communication is not limited between a room and the entryway but where every storey or certain rooms are to be served as well, then the CA-Series is the solution.

The CA-800 amplifier provides a harmonic call signal or an optional tone chime. The dual tone chime enables a second outdoor station to be used with its own unique call.

Up to 20 remote room stations can be used with the CA-800.

Door Stations

The OS: 1000 of OS: 1001 Door Stations can be used with the CA-800. The OS: 1001 is a solid metal, gold lacquered station. For a lesser profile station, the OS: 1000 door station can be provided. The OS: 1001 is made from durable plastic.

Using only low cost station to station, four conductor wring makes installation economical and easy. Three conductor wiring is used to the door stations.



The CA-Series can be used exclusively as a music amplifier when an external music source, sconnected (e.g. turnable, expedieck ornadio). The system can provide background music for offices or a showroom and be muted turing intercom calls.











ΗA

FARNSWORTH APARTMENT HOMES

2 Bedroom plus Family 1,275 sq.ft. (approx. area)



The developer reserves the right to make modifications and changes. Sizes and dimensions are approximate and may vary with actual strata plan, survey and model.



TOWN HOMES







VANCOUVER



Why buy small yet affordable, when you can buy BIG and affordable? Citygate offers ample opportunity for affordable living.



Space is the key to Cítygate luxury living. Unlike the current trend towards smaller suites in Vancouver, Citygate offers large liveable suites. And for the ultimate complement to your new Citygate lifestyle you can enjoy the exclusive 11,000 square foot amenity area including the 48 foot lap pool, whirlpool, sauna, fitness room and lounge. Prime location, views, spacious suites, quality finishes and now, better than ever, *price*, all add up to an unbeatable formula for home-buying.

Display suites open daily 12:00 pm - 5:00 pm.



BOSA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

1128 Quebec Street, Vancouver. Telephone: 682-5127



APPENDIX C

COMPUTER GENERATED DRAWINGS OF ORIGINAL PROTOTYPE AND BATHROOM SETTING



2 r r

TITLE:	File No:
	Page:
KEYWORDS:	Date:
	Project:
DESIGNED B	Y: Cost:
	·
	П
	H H
le information le -l-	
ises or in relation to	its installation or adaptation for which appropriate medical, engineering or other professional services ought to be ob
armission is haraby	given to reproduce this information sheet.

ž





APPENDIX D

PHOTOS OF THE DEVICE IN USE

PHOTOS

- 1. G.F. Strong Rehab Centre
- 1 a) transition into tub
- 2. tub position
- 2 a) toilet position
- 2 b) swivel armrest
- 3. transition into tub
- 3 a) tub position
- 3 b) brake mechanism
- 4. shower scenario
- 4 a) perpendicular to toilet





















APPENDIX E

COMPLETED ERGONOMIC EVALUATION FORMS

		•	• •	` .
Ergonomic Evaluation	Location GF Stro	ng Rehab. Centre	Date 10 June 19	94
				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Description of Device to be Tested				· ·
Rail Transfer Device The device consists of a seat which user to transfer only once and elimin washroom.	moves on a rail from nates the need for m	n the toilet to the ba oving a wheelchair	ath or shower. Th around in an inac	is allows the ccessible
Iser's Name Address (if you y	wish further info. se	ent to you)	Age	
		17	1.90	
Nature of Disability	August	GHI SADEAC	Height	
Judke ~ 11	emileeurc	GA	Weight	
Present Assistance Required for Trans	fers		·	
ore person tra	nger:		, 	
		······································	······································	
Signature Witness		Date <u>i()</u>	une 1994	· · ·
lser Trails		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u></u>	
Jser Trails				
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product.	ich will be used to co ential users will be u	llect feedback with sed to further de	regards evelop this device	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product.	ich will be used to co ential users will be u	llect feedback with sed to further de	regards evelop this device	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device uld be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device uld be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device uld be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f Transfers Height and position of sliding toilet se	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device uld be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f Transfers Height and position of sliding toilet so	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev eat - No Mobile	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device uld be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f Transfers Height and position of sliding toilet so Stability throughout transfer - No fact	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev eat - No Jobien	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device uld be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whitunction of the device. Feedback from pot marketable product. Please give your comments on the f Please give your comments on the f Transfers Height and position of sliding toilet so Stability throughout transfer - No free	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev eat - No Mobilen	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device uld be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whitunction of the device. Feedback from pot marketable product. Please give your comments on the f ransfers Height and position of sliding toilet so Stability throughout transfer - No factor Level of independence -) ferror free	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev eat - No projects Lems	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device uld be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f Please give your comments on the f Transfers Height and position of sliding toilet so Stability throughout transfer - No factor Level of independence - 1 ferror from	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev eat - No problem Lems mafer unicary	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device IId be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f Transfers Height and position of sliding toilet so Stability throughout transfer - No free Level of independence -) ferror free General comments	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev eat - No projects Loms	llect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device uld be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f Transfers Height and position of sliding toilet so Stability throughout transfer - No free Level of independence - 1 ferrer free General comments Ward feel "corride	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev eat - No problem Lems no fet unically makly safe "	ilect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device Id be improved	to the e into a
Jser Trails A test model has been constructed whi unction of the device. Feedback from pot narketable product. Please give your comments on the f Transfers Height and position of sliding toilet so Stability throughout transfer - No ford Level of independence - 1 ferror from General comments Wautod feal "connicle Mautod feal "connicle Mautod feal "connicle	ich will be used to co ential users will be u function of this dev eat - No problem doms mater unically mately safe ¹¹	ilect feedback with sed to further de ice and how it cou	regards evelop this device Ild be improved	to the e into a

.

.

and the second second

and the second sec

Movement along the track

Operating the brake - No -foolen .

Size and comfort and stability of toilet seat Uncomfortable because "so thin"

Balance while moving and ease of movement - feels less balanced while transferring into bath. Arm holder helfed balance.

Level of independence -

General comments Suggested tooks on wheel to stability while transferring over into batter. Felt "inscience" during bath transfer (eg lifting lege).

Using the bath or shower

Operating the taps (simulation) - No froblem .

Level of independence.-

General comments

Further Comments / Suggestions Concerning the Device's Function and the level independence -reat is + + uncomfortable 'arake on seat would be great so can stop best e any point along hail

- as long as rails are there.

Further Comments and Suggestions

Evaluator's Comments

.) ;

a' trans h

Ì

.

:

Initials

Product Viability Before developing this device any further, the extent of its need and usefulness must be known. Please answer and comment on the following questions.

What was your first impression of the device? Looped "fractical" Finot thing noticed was ann tholdens, thought good idea for balance.

How do you presently cope with inaccessible washrooms? $\mathcal{N}[\mathcal{A}]$.

Could this device give you more independence? Yes No comments: - we able to use bathroom by himself

Would you use this device if it was installed in an Yes otherwise inaccessible hotel washroom? comments: found that instals the has been in nove good washers multiply

Do you feel that a rail transfer device could take the place of a large, accessible, code washroom? Comments: Yes, but would still have to make Jadyustments is most washrooms.

How do you think this device could be designed to minimize interference with able-bodied users? Hunges on for side " suggested. In own takthroom, no space to fut up against the wall thruld thave to full in anothe room.

Comments and Suggestions from Family, Attendants, Health Professionals Etc.

Thank you very much for your assistance with this Project.

Ergonomic Evaluation

Location G.F. Strong Rehab. Centre

Date

 \odot

MAY ZO/BF

Description of Device to be Tested

Rail Transfer Device

The device consists of a seat which moves on a rail from the toilet to the bath or shower. This allows the user to transfer only once and eliminates the need for moving a wheelchair around in an inaccessible washroom.

User's Name Address (if you wish further info. sent to you	u) Age 39
Nature of Disability	Height
Stroke ; L sided paralysis	57 Weight
Present Assistance Required for Transfers IVane USES Mooren Benca e forme	5,
Consent I <u>James Nemett</u> agree to participate in the evalu	lation of the Rail
Transfer Device by using the device.	
Signature Almark	Date Alay 201

User Trails

Witness

A test model has been constructed which will be used to collect feedback with regards to the function of the device. Feedback from potential users will be used to further develop this device into a marketable product.

Please give your comments on the function of this device and how it could be improved.

ones

Transfers Height and position of sliding toilet seat Hught Frale WIDIN FINE MORE STABLET LONGER FORMARDS-Stability throughout transfer = STRONGER ARM REST Level of independence **General comments**

Movement along the track

Operating the brake

17.2

Size and comfort and stability of toilet seat $\sim z^{\prime \prime} o u^{\prime}$

- Cui out is Goot? .

Balance while moving and ease of movement BAR 15 Good - CINES SECURATY.

Level of independence

General comments

Using the bath or shower

Operating the taps (simulation) \mathcal{Tire}

Level of independence

General comments A Scal BASICE

Further Comments / Suggestions Concerning the Device's Function and the level independence

 \odot

Product Viability

Before developing this device any further, the extent of its need and usefulness must be known.

Please answer and comment on the following questions.

What was your first impression of the device? - Leoks Strife - Coop IDEA

How do you presently cope with inaccessible washrooms? USES TorceT direct Assistance BATH BENCH

Could this device give you more independence? Comments: Yes No EALIER LA HIS PISARICIT. Not Kalow Re. Other Oall TRANS. SAFE. - TEALSFER Andry From THE. comments: Yes No

Would you use this device if it was installed in an otherwise inaccessible hotel washroom? Yes mments: Vouco Corne Int Hanlo-/ - Now He vouce Take Bain/ Bones - FLEX. Shower HEAD. comments: /

Do you feel that a rail transfer device could take the place of a large, accessible, code washroom? Comments: $\frac{1}{ES}$ $\frac{1}{Coop}$ $\frac{1}{Foc}$ ASPA DI NEAR S

How do you think this device could be designed to minimize interference with ablebodied users? F_{abac} is F_{ac} . OF is CF

Comments and Suggestions from Family, Attendants, Health Professionals Etc.

Thank you very much for your assistance with this Project.

Further Comments and Suggestions / & COULD OF USED THIS Delice C Horace EARLIER IN PRASICA. \$BATH BOARDS PEON THIS INB. ET 15 GOOD : ONE IEAN GIGILEI SENT & BATAL BOAR BOLED

Evaluator's Comments ctleck, whoreas of warder BALIT BENCHES

 \odot

Initials

Ergonomic Evalua	ation Location G.F. Strong Reh	ab. Centre Date M	IFM 2719
Description of Device to b	be Tested	•	
The device consists of a user to transfer only onc washroom.	a seat which moves on a rail from the to ce and eliminates the need for moving a	let to the bath or show wheelchair around in a	er. This allows an inaccessible
User's Name Addre	ess (if you wish further info. sent to y	'ou) Agi	53
Nature of Disability	BRAPLEGIA	Hei	ght G 💆
Present Assistance Required	d for Transfers	We	ight 21
and Re	esson assist_	·····	
Signature Witness	1 agree to participate in the eva 1 the device. 1	luation of the Rail Date $\frac{Maye}{\sim}$	27/99 el-A
User Trails			<u> </u>
A test model has been con function of the device. Feedba marketable product.	structed which will be used to collect fe ack from potential users will be used to	edback with rega further develop this	ards to device into a
Please give your comme	nts on the function of this device and	I how it could be imp	roved.
Transfers			
Height and position of slid	ing toilet seat - toe high		
Stability throughout transf	er no problem		
Level of independence	independant		· .
General comments - Sec - rece	at is tiny need sp a handle on (D) size	ace on eithe	r side

.

Product Viability Before developing this device any further, the extent of its need and usefulness must be known. Please answer and comment on the following questions. What was your first impression of the device? "Kind of primitive" Noticed fram on seat-didn't affeat to me" How do you presently cope with inaccessible washrooms? Used to use a regular chair is transfor self is full self around with arms Could this device give you more independence? Yes comments: No Yes, in my apartment. Bachelor with very Small Wathroom Would you use this device if it was installed in an Yes No otherwise inaccessible hotel washroom? comments: ''l£ I was able to get something like this " Do you feel that a rail transfer device could take the place of a large, accessible, code washroom? **Comments:** Ves. How do you think this device could be designed to minimize interference with able-bodied users ? Just as it is, would be fine ...] Comments and Suggestions from Family, Attendants, Health Professionals Etc. Thank you very much for your assistance with this Project.

Movement along the track Operating the brake fit departies - Okcept the placement of the house awRarc. is Size and comfort and stability of toilet seat 💷 🕁 🗛 🕹 Balance while moving and ease of movement - an age is much when the second court Level of independence -General comments - have a mage altraded its and the full And the jac to they Using the bath or shower Operating the taps (simulation) Level of independence Indefendant General comments Further Comments / Suggestions Concerning the Device's Function and the level independence Softer seat. A non-slip foot board would be very heefful Bars reeded on both sides strong enough fir transfers.

Further Comments and Suggestions Difficulty moving device, but recognizes that there would be impovement with fractive

Evaluator's Comments Initials till is quite a big man ." he felt the seat was too narrow, and uncomfortable for him For stability, he really reeded his hips and press to be at a 90 angle. A foot rest of some pind would have helped him move along the had difficulty moving the denice along the rail the didna want to use body movements, and couldn't really find any thing to hold on \$.

Description of Device to be Tested	
Rail Transfer Device The device consists of a seat which moves on a rail from the toilet to the b user to transfer only once and eliminates the need for moving a wheelchai washroom.	ath or shower. This allows the r around in an inaccessible
User's Name Address (if you wish further info. sent to you)	Age
Nature of Disability multiple sclenous	Height
Brasset Assistance Required for Transfers	Weight
Mene .	
Signature Date <u>K</u> Witness <u>Puth Lanc</u>	<u>7/06/94</u> .
User Trails	
A test model has been constructed which will be used to collect feedback with function of the device. Feedback from potential users will be used to further of marketable product.	n regards to the levelop this device into a
Please give your comments on the function of this device and how it co	ould be improved.
Transfers	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Height and position of sliding toilet seat	
Height and position of sliding toilet seat Stability throughout transfer	
Height and position of sliding toilet seat Stability throughout transfer WENY DTAMA	
Height and position of sliding toilet seat Stability throughout transfer Way station Level of independence	
Height and position of sliding toilet seat Stability throughout transfer way station Level of independence Modependent General comments	

--

...

سيوية للاصليميون الادرواردان

ana dan seria akara menangkan katan di s

.**.** .

____**x**

Product Viability Before developing this device any further, the extent of its need and usefulness must be known. Please answer and comment on the following questions. What was your first impression of the device? really good udea-saves a lot of steps. How do you presently cope with inaccessible washrooms? - Caunch self "unto tuis normal tribet Could this device give you more independence? Yes comments: No Would you use this device if it was installed in an No otherwise inaccessible hotel washroom? thight it would be quite uside for many situations comments: Do you feel that a rail transfer device could take the place of a large, accessible, code washroom? **Comments:** How do you think this device could be designed to minimize interference with able-bodied users ? -fold it up against the wall Comments and Suggestions from Family, Attendants, Health Professionals Etc. Thank you very much for your assistance with this Project.

Movement along the track Operating the brake dint. no prob - would prefer "latch break Size and comfort and stability of toilet seat - back in buck 10 for Balance while moving and ease of movement Line balance Ŋ Level of independence undipendent General comments - slide javily Would nefer something to gap on likes gub bar on wall of itab Using the bath or shower **Operating the taps (simulation)** Inc publish. General comments - would dike lock for seat when it itus. Further Comments / Suggestions Concerning the Device's Function and the level independence - grab-bar flat, hard, une omfortable seat-would like nontonn + padding - lateral support on seat

Further Comments and Suggestions - luots good for a prototype. **Evaluator's Comments** Initials

Ergonomic Evaluation

Location G.F. Strong Rehab. Centre

Date

Description of Device to be Tested

Rail Transfer Device

The device consists of a seat which moves on a rail from the toilet to the bath or shower. This allows the user to transfer only once and eliminates the need for moving a wheelchair around in an inaccessible washroom.

User's Name	Address (if you wish further info. sent to you)	Age
Nature of Disability	RAIN STEM LESION	Height SZZ
Present Assistance	e Required for Transfers	108/5
·····	ONL- IN THE MORATING.	

Consent

I ______agree to participate in the evaluation of the Rail Transfer Device by using the device.

Signature _____ Witness_____

Date	

User Trails

A test model has been constructed which will be used to collect feedback with regards to the function of the device. Feedback from potential users will be used to further develop this device into a marketable product.

Please give your comments on the function of this device and how it could be improved.

Transfers

Height and position of sliding toilet seat

Stability throughout transfer

Level of independence

General comments

Product Viability

Before developing this device any further, the extent of its need and usefulness must be known.

Please answer and comment on the following questions.

What was your first impression of the device? PIDANT LOOK LIKE IT NOULD HELP Dough Looking .

How do you presently cope with inaccessible, washrooms?

ANOID THEM (LIKE THE FLAGE)

Could this device give you more independence? Yes comments: No NEED NORE HELP. - LEAS alter INFS Like To which F I was (simply up)

Would you use this device if it was installed in an otherwise inaccessible, hotel washroom? Yes No comments: FERSON GOVED NEEDS TO CHOW HON TO USE T

Do you feel that a rail transfer device could take the place of a large, accessible, code washroom? Comments:

VOUD FEEL SAFEZ .

How do you think this device could be designed to minimize interference with ablebodied users ? Mole II out of IT/R VIAN/

Comments and Suggestions from Family, Attendants, Health Professionals Etc.

Thank you very much for your assistance with this Project.

N	lovement along the track
	Operating the brake
	Size and comfort and stability of toilet seat
	Balance while moving and ease of movement
	Level of independence
	General comments
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
U	sing the bath or shower
	Operating the taps (simulation)
	Level of independence
	General comments
Fu	Arther Comments / Suggestions Concerning the Device's Function and the level independence Reference Area Presis of 3014 sides
	CIEL ATTANE NOL TO CUPACIT DU VALANT TO TRAVEL, TO PARREASE REACH
	- HOLD ONTO OTHER SOE
/	Nore Cusefor/ on SEAT.

Further Comments and Suggestions

. .

Evaluator's Comments

.

Initials

•

Initials

,

.

APPENDIX F

SUMMARY OF G.F. STRONG AND IN-HOUSE TESTS

APPENDIX F - SUMMARY OF IN-HOME TESTING

Home #1(Photo set 2)User:Female stroke victim

Environment: The device was installed in a large sized shower, in a chair accessible washroom without a bathtub. The device reduced the number of transfers necessary. However, the regular method of transferring from bed to a shower chair and then to a regular chair after showering with the help of an attendant was considered acceptable, even with the extra transfer onto the toilet. Two women with disabilities who live upstairs also tried the device in this setting and reacted positively.

Home #2(Photo set 3)`User:28 year old male paraplegicEnvironment:The toilet is located beside the bathtub. The taps of the bathtubare located behind the seat of the device in position. Normally a bath bench was used.The device was used and was considered to be helpful.

Home #3 (Photo set 4)

User: 38 year old male C7 quadriplegic

Environment: The toilet is located beside the bathtub. The taps of the bathtub are located in front of the seat. A bath bench was normally used. The device was used and response was favorable.

All home tests generated a positive response. However a regular method of transfer was retained for the present . .



Bathroom configuration similar to home #2 and #3.

APPENDIX F. - SUMMARY OF G.F. STRONG TESTING

Disability	<u>Age</u>	<u>Height</u>	<u>Weight</u>	Transfer Assistance
Paraplegia, male	53	6'1"	215 Ibs	One person assistance
Stroke, right hemiplegia				One person assistance
Multiple sclerosis, male				None needed
Stroke, left side	38	5'7"	175	None needed
Paralysis, male			105.	
Quadriplegic, male	25	6'	140 Ibs.	One person assistance
Multiple sclerosis, female	32	5'3"	115 Ibs.	One person assistance

Observations

<u>Seat</u>

Seat was too narrow(16") for comfortable transfers so it was widened to 18". To further aid the comfort of the user deeper cushioning was used and the back rest was made adjustable to different angles.

<u>Brake</u>

Pin brake did not allow user to stop anywhere on the track. The brake was modified to allow this.

Arm Rests

Arm rests were installed on both sides of the chair for comfort and safety.

Crossbars

Crossbars were installed so that the user could pull and push on them to help them move along the track and to stop themselves from falling should they lose their balance.

General

The front of the chair should remain unobstructed for ease of transfer and so that provisions can be made for waist straps.

APPENDIX F (Continued)

Conclusion

Although the G.F. Strong trials yielded a relatively small user group, the documents and suggestions were consistent. The feedback has indicated how the device can be improved. Before the next stage of testing, i.e. in home evaluations, the results of the G.F. Strong tests were used to modify the prototype.

